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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The American Antiquarian Society occupies a 1.80 acre site on the south side of
Salisbury Street (number 185, between Park Avenue and Regent Street) in a section
of Worcester, Massachusetts, devoted primarily to residential buildings and other
educational institutions.

Construction of the Society's present building, its third home, was made possible
by a bequest of $200,000 from Stephen Salisbury, a prominent Worcester businessman
and landowner. The building site was acquired from the Worcester Art Museum (to
whom it had been bequeathed by Salisbury). The Antiquarian Society retained two
Boston architectural firms--R. Clipton Sturgis and Winslow, Bigelow & Wadsworth--
to prepare competing plans for its new building. The Winslow firm's plans were
selected, but Sturgis was engaged to supervise construction. The building was
begun in October 1909, and completed late in 1910.

The Antiquarian Society building is a 2-story Georgian Revival structure, brick
with marble trim, on a low, granite block foundation. Its octagonal mass, which
projects one bay on the northeast (front), southeast, and northwest elevations,
culminates in a low dome on an octagonal base; a stack wing, roughly square in
shape, is attached to the southwest elevation. The marble cornice and frieze
which surrounds the building at roof level is repeated on the base of the dome.
The tetrastyle Doric portico which covers the main entrance carries a full
entablature with triglyphs and a triangular pediment. The doorway itself is
flanked by Doric pilasters and repeats the entablature and pediment of the portico
on a smaller scale. Windows are 12/12 double-hung sash with keystoned marble
lintels. Marble panels with carved garlands are set into the brick between the
first and second floor windows on the southeast and northwest elevations.

At the center of the octagonal mass is a 2-story octagonal reading room open to
the dome; it is surrounded by alternating hexagonal office or exhibit spaces and
open passageways on the first floor, by hexagonal exhibit spaces and galleries at
the second. The southeast and northwest bays contain smaller reading rooms on the
first floor, a meeting room and work area on the second. The northeast (front)
bay contains the entrance hall, coat rooms, and a half-turn marble staircase.

Alterations to the original portion of the building have been few and minor.

The most noticeable of them was made in 1924 when the marble dome was covered
with copper to prevent leakage. Additions made at the rear of the building in
1924 and 1950 have tripled its original stack capacity; both repeat the material
and detailing of the 1910 structure. A basement-level addition, containing
administrative offices and engineering facilities, was erected in 1972 at the rear
of the northwest side of the building. Though constructed of concrete, it does
not detract from the older portions of the building; only its roof projects above
ground-level and that has been treated as a lawn terrace.

(Note: National Landmark Boundaries appear on the rear of the form)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The American Antiquarian Society, founded in 1812, is the third oldest historical
society in the United States (only the Massachusetts Historical Society, 1790, and
the New York Historical Society, 1804, have a longer history), and the first to be
national rather than regional in its purpose and in the scope of its collections.
It is the age and the extent of those collections which constitute the basis of the
national significance of the Society. With holdings numbering close to three million
books, pamphlets, broadsides, manuscripts, prints, maps and newspapers, this library
preserves the largest single collection of printed source material relating to the
history, literature and culture of the first 250 years of what is now the United
States. The Society specializes in the American period to 1877 and holds two-thirds
of the total pieces known to have been printed in this country between 1640 and 1821,
as well as the most useful source materials and reference works printed since that
period. Its files of 18th and 19th century newspapers, numbering two million issues,
are the finest in the world.

The Society's third and present home in Worcester, Massachusetts, is a Georgian Revival
building erected in 1909-1910 (the earlier buildings, also in Worcester, are no longer
extant). A research institution rather than a reading library, the Society restricts
the use of its facilities to the adult public; its operating hours are 9 a.m. to 5 p.m.
Monday through Friday (closed on legal holidays).

Historical Background

Isaiah Thomas, the founder of the American Antiquarian Society, was born in 1749 to a
family so poor that at the age of six he was taken from his mother by the Overseers of
the Poor of Boston and apprenticed to a printer. During the genesis of the American
Revolution, Thomas's sympathies were with the popular faction. He made his newspaper,
The Massachusetts Spy, the voice of the Whig party. The paper was distributed from
Quebec to Savannah by the couriers of the Committees of Correspondence and, as much

as any other one factor, it served to unify the resistance movement in the thirteen
colonies. Three nights prior to the Battle of Lexington and Concord, Thomas smuggled
his printing press out of Boston and set it up in Worcester. Thomas became the lead-
ing printer, editor, publisher and bookseller in the United States after the war. The
editions which he published were the best in every field, and were marketed through
interlocking partnerships which covered the new nation.

In 1802, Thomas retired and turned his attention to the preservation of the recorded
origins and growth of the nation which he had helped to make. Believing that the
answers to the problems of history lie in the lives and thoughts of common men, one
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of his first steps was to make the rounds of newspapers of Revolutionary days to buy up
their office files. In his search for material he one day went into the largest music
store in Boston and bought one copy of every ballad on its shelves (the cornerstone of
the American Antiquarian Society's present extensive collection of early American
music) .

The task of preserving these sources of history for the American people was far more

than one man could accomplish. With a group of like-minded men, Thomas founded the
American Antiquarian Society, incorporated by the Massachusetts Legislature on October

24, 1812. At the Society's first meeting, held on November 19 at the Exchange Coffee House
in Boston, Thomas was elected its president, a position he held until his death in 1831.
Worcester was chosen as the Society's permanent home because it was an inland town,

safe from attack by the British fleet (then raiding the American coast in the War of

1812).

Thomas presented the newly formed Society with his library of 8,000 volumes and an
endowment of $20,000, a substantial sum for the period. At first Thomas kept the hold-
ings of the Society in his own home, but in 1817 he offered to contribute the site,
150,000 bricks, and $2,000 toward the construction of a suitable building to house
them. This first building was completed in 1820 and was replaced by the Society's
second headquarters in 1853.

During its early years, the Antiquarian Society played an important role in furthering
the study of American anthropology. It maintained an anthropological museum and made
a concerted effort to collect American Indian material. In 1830, the Society published
a volume on prehistoric remains in the western United States, followed six years later
by Albert Gallatin's classic account of the Indian tribes of North American. Later,
the Society was active in such fields as Central American archaeology, but the growth
of anthropology and related sciences at the Smithsonian Institution and like organi-
zations made it obvious that more could be accomplished by specialization than by
duplication of effort. The Society, therefore, abandoned active anthropological work
and broke up its museum; between 1886 and 1895, the archaeological and ethnological
collections were transferred to Harvard's Peabody Museum.

A new era in the history of the Antiquarian Society began with the appointment of
Clarence S. Brigham as Librarian in 1908 and the construction of its present building,
specifically designed as a research library, in 1909-1910. In the years that immedi-
ately followed, existing collections of genealogy, local history, psalmody, early
school books, United States documents, and almanacs were notably increased. Under
Brigham's leadership, the Society established or built to major dimensions collections
of American literature, maps, book catalogues, song books, sheet music, lithography,
bookplates, colonial currency, cookbooks, railroad material, and western narratives.
In such minor and ephemeral fields as valentines, stereoscopic views, miniature books,
watch papers, and watermarked papers, the Society assembled collections that have,

in some cases, proved to be unequalled.
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With current holdings of nearly three million items, dealing primarily with the American
period to 1877, the Antiquarian Society ranks as the preeminent institution of its kind.
In addition, the Society has made significant contributions to the advancement of
bibliographical knowledge. For example, in 1927 it sponsored and published the History
and Bibliography of American Newspapers 1690-1820 by Clarence Brigham, which has become
the standard work on that subject. More recently, under Librarian Clifford K. Shipton,
the Society initiated its Early American Imprints project, a microfilm edition which
will eventually include every book, pamphlet, and broadside printed in what is now the
United States between 1640 and 1820; to date, full texts of over 75,000 titles have
been copied.

The American Antiquarian Society has numbered among its members twelve presidents of
the United States and hundredsof other distinguished men, including Thomas Hart Benton,
Lewis Cass, Henry Clay, DeWitt Clinton, Robert Fulton, Albert Gallatin, John Jay and
Daniel Webster. Calvin Coolidge was president of the Society at the time of his death
in 1933. Membership is by election and is open to 300 persons who come from all parts
of the nation; members are chosen for their interest in the advancement of historical
research and it is they who support the work of the Society.
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